
 
Environmental Advisory                                Lower Saucon Township                                              April 1, 2008  
Council                                                                        Minutes                                                                    7:00 PM 
 
 
I. OPENING 

 
CALL TO ORDER:  The Environmental Advisory Council meeting of Lower Saucon Township Council 
was called to order on Tuesday, April 1, 2008 at 7:00 P.M., at 3700 Old Philadelphia Pike, Bethlehem, PA, 
with Sandy Yerger, Chairperson, presiding.    

   
 ROLL CALL:  Present – Chairman, Sandra Yerger; Vice Chairman, Tom Maxfield; Allan Johnson, Ted 

Beardsley, Tom McCormick, Bob Davis, Glenn Clouser, and Haz Hijazi; Terry Boos, Hellertown 
Representative and Rick Tralies, Boucher & James, Township Planner.   Absent –   Dennis Aranyos, Glenn 
Kaye. 

  
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

II. NEW BUSINESS 

 
A. OPEN SPACE CLUSTER ORDINANCE- DISCUSSION 
 

Ms. Yerger stated that she would like everyone to be prepared to discuss the Township’s existing 
cluster development ordinance at the May meeting.   Many developments such as the Estates at 
Stonehurst are being planned in such a manner that the open space often lacks environmental value. 

Mr. Johnson stated that he believes that the cluster developments should be planned in a manner 
which intersperses the open space with the dwelling lots.  Mr. Tralies stated that Mr. Johnson is 
actually talking about conservation subdivision design, which is different than a cluster 
development.  He also stated that the revisions to the SLDO Ordinance, which Boucher & James 
and Hanover are currently preparing, are focused on requiring conservation subdivision design, 
based on the four step process. 

Mr. Maxfield stated that many of the recent developments are not conducive to conservation 
subdivisions, as much of the land has already been disturbed. 

Ms. Yerger stated that many of the developers also don’t want to establish endowments for ongoing 
monitoring and maintenance.  Mr. Hijazi asked how they react to being required to establish these 
funds.  Ms. Yerger stated that some of the funds are recouped through the HOA agreements.  Mr. 
Maxfield stated that the timing is often important as well. 

Ms. Yerger stated that issues such as permitting stormwater management in the open space should 
be considered by the EAC, along with the importance of natural features. 

Mr. Maxfield stated that the first steps in creating open space associated with a cluster subdivision 
should be similar to the steps in the flow chart created for preservation of private open space.  
Natural resources should be considered first.  The cluster ordinance should be resource based.  Ms. 
Yerger stated that site visits, including visits by the EAC and Planning Commission should be 
conducted early in the process. 

Mr. Hijazi stated that the Planning Commission often reviews the plans, but can’t tell whether the 
proposed open space could be connected to other open space.  Mr. Tralies stated that part of the 
problem is that most Townships regularly grant waivers of the requirement to show existing 
features adjacent to the site.  This is due to costs and the ability to survey another owner’s private 
property.  He advised that an aerial photograph is required to be submitted, and that often this aerial 



Environmental Advisory Council Meeting 
April 1, 2008 
 

Page 2 of 4 

is made part of the location map.  He advised the commissions to look at the aerial, and if the aerial 
provided isn’t adequate, Google Maps or other online resources may be useful. 

Ms. Yerger stated that Chris Garges, Zoning Officer, may be able to produce a GIS based map 
showing all open space, parks, watershed recharge and other similar areas.  She asked the EAC to 
review the existing cluster ordinance and be prepared to discuss related open space issues at the 
May meeting. 

III. DEVELOPER ITEMS 
 
A. READINGTON ESTATES MAJOR SUBDIVISON – READINGTON ROAD – 

RESUBMISSION 
 

Mr. Tralies, Ms. Yerger and Mr. Maxfield provided a summary of the plans.  The site is located on 
Readington Road, adjacent to Route 78 and across the street from the Petrie property.  Five lots are 
proposed, with open space included on lot 5.  Woodlands, steep slopes and a stream exist on the 
site.  The site is proposed to be served by a community septic system.  The system is proposed 
within an area of environmentally sensitive woodlands.  The engineer has indicated that they think 
they can make the natural resource calculations regarding environmentally sensitive woodlands 
comply with the requirements.  B&J has not reviewed revised calculations yet though.  There is an 
existing access drive on the neighboring property which may be able to be utilized to access the 
septic system area. 

Ms. Ray moved to recommend the following conditions: That the existing access road be utilized 
for access to the septic system and that the required easements be provided; that the existing 
vegetation be re-examined to determine whether it is adequate for use as street trees; that all 
existing wells not proposed for use, be properly abandoned; that maintenance of the rain gardens be 
included in the HOA agreements; that the EAC reserve comment on the septic system until further 
detail is provided; and that the requirements of the Zoning Ordinance regarding preservation of 
environmentally sensitive woodlands be upheld. 

 
MOTION BY: Ms. Ray moved to make the stated recommendations. 
SECOND BY: Mr. Johnson 
ROLL CALL: All in Favor:  Yes 
 Opposed:  None 

 
IV. OLD/MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS 

 
A. REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF MARCH 4, 2008 MINUTES 

The minutes were approved with changes. 

B. SAUCON VALLEY COUNTRY CLUB 

The applicant will appear before the EAC at the May meeting, in order to address the comments in 
the most recent review letters provided by B&J and HEA. 
 

V. UPDATES/REPORTS 
 

A. HELLERTOWN REPORT 
 

Nothing to report. 
 



Environmental Advisory Council Meeting 
April 1, 2008 
 

Page 3 of 4 

B. OPEN SPACE SUB COMMITTEE 

Petrie Property- Mr. Beardsley stated that they are investigating the Petrie property for 
preservation.  He and Mr. McCormick have conducted a site visit with the Petries.  Mr. Johnson has 
not yet seen the site.  They will score the site and discuss it further after Mr. Johnson has seen the 
site. 

Dravecz Properties- Mr. Beardsley stated that he feels there should be some urgency in getting the 
appraisals conducted.  Mr. Dravecz may be trying to shop the properties to developers.  
Additionally, the map from Chris Garges should be revised.  The proposed easement over the 
development lot should be included in the appraisal as it will act as a buffer. 

Ms. Yerger and Mr. Maxfield indicated that Township Council has authorized the appraisals and 
that the Township Solicitor is working on it.  The group discussed trying to obtain a contract giving 
the Township the right of first refusal on the property.  It was agreed that this would be difficult 
and would guarantee nothing. 

The EAC agreed that the purchase should be contingent on establishing a conservation easement 
over a portion of the development lot.  The Township must decide on which language to use as 
well. 

The EAC then discussed the intended philosophy behind open space preservation as it relates to the 
Dravecz properties.  Mr. Maxfield stated that they can preserve this open space for many reasons- 
to preserve the natural features and to provide passive recreation. 

Mr. McCormick asked what the EIT says specifically. Does it state that the funds can be used for 
creation of recreation land or parks?  He believes that these properties cannot be effectively 
developed, so he is hesitant to recommend using a large percentage of available funds for 
preservation.  He states that the appropriateness of using EIT funds to preserve these parcels is 
dependant on the wording of the EIT itself.  The EAC stated that they believe the EIT does permit 
acquisition in order to provide recreation. 

Mr. Beardsley stated that the parcels are within one of the important natural features preservation 
areas described in the open space plan and there is an opportunity to provide recreation.  Mr. 
Maxfield stated that there are opportunities for education as well.  Ms. Yerger stated that the 
Township Ordinances currently protect the properties from extensive development.  However, a 
future Council could revise the ordinances in a manner which would permit development.  

The EAC agreed that they would request further direction from Township Solicitor Linc Treadwell. 

Mr. Maxfield stated that the Township should take action to assure Mr. Dravecz that the Township 
is serious about acquiring the parcels.  Mr. Beardsley stated that Mr. Dravecz is aware that the 
Township is pursuing DCNR funding. 

Mr. Beardsley will talk to Linc Treadwell regarding further action.  Mr. Beardsley will work with 
Mr. Garges to revise the Dravecz maps. The Township will submit an application to DCNR for 
grant funding. 

Mr. Beardsley made a motion that the EAC recommend that appraisals be conducted and that an 
application be submitted for DCNR funding, dependant on the results of the appraisals. 

MOTION BY: Mr. Beardsley moved to make the stated recommendations. 
SECOND BY: Mr. Johnson 
ROLL CALL: All in Favor:  Yes   Opposed:  None    Abstained: Mr. McCormick 



Environmental Advisory Council Meeting 
April 1, 2008 
 

Page 4 of 4 

NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
 
Mr. Johnson stated that he has been in contact with a forester who is willing to show the EAC some recently 
timbered sites in order to help the EAC see the effects of timber harvesting plans and other related issues.  Mr. 
Maxfield suggested that Mr. Johnson coordinate a few possible times and dates for a group site visit and report 
back to the EAC. 

Ms. Yerger stated that PPL is offering recycling kits for CFL’s (compact fluorescent lightbulbs), but the Township 
has to establish a location for the bin.  The EAC agreed that the Township should pursue this, and that a location 
should be provided inside the Township building. 

Ms. Ray stated that she had intended to coordinate a composting workshop within the Township, but the Township 
only has a few available bins.  SO rather than coordinate a workshop in the Township, she will post a flyer for an 
upcoming PSU seminar on the EAC website. 

Ms. Ray stated that the website has had 1205 unique visitors.  She would like help with additional ideas for content. 

VI. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 THE MEETING ADJOURNED AT APPROXIMATELY 9:30 PM. 


